SOL-623-10-000002

AMENDMENT 1

SEXUAL AND GENDER-BASED VIOLENCE (SGBV) IN THE EASTERN PROVINCES OF THE DRC

QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES
1. Should the monitoring and evaluation plan be included in the Program Description section? If so, page 3 states that the Program Description with Key Personnel should not exceed 20 pages, while the Monitoring and Evaluation Plan should not exceed 3 pages. Therefore, should the complete Program Description section be a maximum of 20 pages, or 23 pages? 
Answer:
The complete Technical Application for the proposal should not exceed 30 pages. The Monitoring and Evaluation plan should be included in that.
2. There are several different descriptions of how the technical proposal should be laid out (e.g. on page 3, pages 4-6, page 10-12, and perhaps pages 20-32). In some places these suggestions contradict one another, e.g. should the description of key personnel be included in the management plan (p 4-6) or in the program description (p 3), or a section on its own (page 11)? 
Answer: The following format should be followed:
A. COVER LETTER

B. TABLE OF CONTENTS 

C. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

D. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION (with brief summary of Key Personnel)
E. MONITORING AND EVALUATION PLAN

F. OVERVIEW OF THE APPLICANT & PAST PERFORMANCE

G. SUB-AGREEMENTS

I. ATTACHMENTS

I.1
Overall Project Work Plan

I.2
Signed Personnel Statements

I.3
Resumes or CVs of proposed Key Personnel and their roles and responsibilities in detail.
I.4
Maps (if any)

I.5
Letter of support from host governments:

I.6 Past Performance references:
I.7
Overall Management Approach
I.8
Other attachments
3. Page 3 gives approximate page counts for each section, including the cover page and executive summary. Is the cover page, table of contents, and/or executive summary included in the page limit?
Answer:
See Answer 1 above
4. On page 3 it states that the Annex can only contain resumes, CVs and PPRs. It also states specifically that "No letters of commitment are required."  This conflicts with what is stated on page 4 where it says Attachments should include: Overall Management Approach, Signed Personnel Statements, Maps, Letter of support from host government and a description of sub-agreements. Please clarify.
Answer:
See answer 2 above
5. Similarly, should the section describing potential sub-recipients or sub-contractors be included in the Main Technical Application or as a separate annex?

Answer: 
See Answer 2 above
6. On page 6 first paragraph, it says "Applicants should describe experience both in managing sub-grant programs and in the area of promoting reconciliation in NIS as well as the extent of the applicant's 'on the ground' presence in the region."   Should this read DRC rather than NIS?
Answer:
DRC
7. Should the proposal be based on a three-year or five-year program?

Answer: 
Bidders should submit a (five-year) proposal that has: a three-year core technical proposal; with a two-year extension proposal. The budgets should be broken down in the same way with a 3 yr core budget and then an additional 2 year extension budget).
8. Submission of applications: the RFA cover letter specifies the order of precedence of each section in the event of an inconsistency between RFA documents. In this case, could you please confirm that applications are to be submitted only via grants.gov? in the event of technical difficulties, should an electronic copy also be forwarded to you by e-mail? Should a hard copy also be forward to the USAID East Africa Office?
Answer:
All applications should be submitted electronically to grants.gov and to the CO and Johnny Damian at jdamian@usaid.gov . No hard copies are necessary. 
9. Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (p. 7): some NGOs has carried out business mainly with CIDA, the Canadian International Development Agency, and indirect cost rates are set according to current CIDA standards (approx. 12% on specific indirect costs), or according to rates negotiated for specific contracts. In the case of projects funded by other donors (e.g.: World Bank), this rate is negotiated on a case by case basis, according to the donor's specific regulations. Is this type of information acceptable or does the RFA refer strictly to rates negotiated with USAID? In this case, information listed under E. (page 7) will be provided. 
Answer:
These rates will be considered in the pre-award stage but additional negotiations will be expected if the NGO is chosen as a final applicant. 
10. The last point on page 7 states that "Applicants that have never received a grant, cooperative agreement of contract from the US Government are required to submit a copy of their accounting manual" - can it be submitted in French? 
Answer:
All documents submitted to the USG for review must be in English. 
11.  On page 21, there is a mention of "Attachment C" with a "desktop gap analysis" of where there is currently USAID SGBV service provision in the East. Would it be possible to receive a copy of Attachment C? It does not seem to be included in with the RFA documents available on grants.gov. In light of the various initiatives in the proposed area of intervention, this information would be extremely helpful. 
Answer:  Attachment C is on page 41of the National SBGV Strategy.
12. Regarding Past Performance references: are CIDA and World Bank funded contracts/grants and cooperative agreements also acceptable? And should there be at least 3 references only for the primary applicant, or also for each identified partner organization or potential sub-recipient? 
Answer:
Yes, program past performance from other donors is acceptable. The 3 references refer to the primary applicant only.
13. In the case of identified sub-recipients and / or partners, should a full copy of the agreements be included as an attachment?  And if so, in the case of DRC or Quebec-based organizations, is it acceptable that these agreements be in French? 
Answer:
No, a full copy of the agreements in not necessary.  All documents submitted to the USG for review must be in English.
14. Regarding resumes/CVs: does the 2-page limit also apply to important managerial and technical personnel who will be involved in program activity? Can the confirmation regarding reference checks appear on the cover letter or should it appear on each Key Personnel CV?
Answer:
See Answers 1 and 2 above
15. Also, on page 29, it is stated that applications should reflect a balance between short and long-term as well as third country, cooperating country and American technical expertise. Would it be possible to receive information regarding current maximum daily/annual rates for third country nationals (Canadians) and DRC technical experts?
Answer:
Third Country nationals would depend on their salary history and work experience. 
16. Regarding field offices: on page 29, it is mentioned that offices and activities will be located in 2 and up to 5 provinces, while on page 30, there is a mention of 3 to 5 field offices - please clarify. 
Answer:  Offices and activities will be located in 2 and up to 5 provinces
17. How many awards are expected?  Grants.gov list a total of 5 whereas Pg 8 part 5 says 1 award.
Answer:
There will be one award for this solicitation. 
18. Please clarify the minimum number of provinces for activities
a. Pg 21 states : “least two, and up to five, of the following provinces in the East of the DRC (Oriental, North Kivu, South Kivu, Maniema, and Katanga)
b. Pg 22 states: “in targeted communities within these (three to) five provinces”
Answer:  Activities will be implemented in 2 and up to 5 provinces.
19. Please verify that “no letters of commitment are required” for personnel as stated on Pg 3 part 2.  If this is the case then what is referred on Pg 4 part G as:  I.2 Signed personnel statements?
Answer:
See Answer 2 above.
20. Please verify the only documents required at submission from a DRC based sub-recipient are: 
a. Sub-agreements (Pg 4 part G I.7)
Answer:
Yes.
b. Attachment A (Pg 48) “The recipient must obtain from each identified sub grantee and (sub) contractor, and submit with its application/proposals, the Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion…Lower Tier Transactions set forth in Attachment A hereto”
Answer:
Yes.
21. Please clarify what is referred to as required annex I.7 Sub-Agreements on Pg 4.  Would a signed Organizational Letters of Commitment suffice? 
Answer:
Yes.
22. Please verify the number and content of Past Performance References to include as annex.  There are 2 variations:
a. Pg 6 states: “the applicant should include a table listing all of the major U.S. Governmental and/or privately funded contracts, grants and cooperative agreements during the past three years received by the organization involving programs similar to the program proposed in their application. The following should be included in the table - name of awarding organization or agency, a contact name, address, telephone/fax number and e-mail contact; the award number and type of award; amount of award and the cost share (if any); time period (begin and end dates of services/program); and a very brief description of the program and geographical location where services or the program was implemented.” 
b. Pg 46 states “please provide a list of the ten most current U.S. Government and/or privately-funded contracts, grants, cooperative agreements, etc., and the name, address, and telephone number of the Contract/Agreement Officer or other contact person.”

Answer:
Please provide a table listing all the programs during the past 3 years received by the organization in this subject area. 
23. Which is the preferred technical format?  Pg 3 part 2 states both:
 A) “The structure of the application format is presented below:” 
A. Cover sheet (1-2 pages)

B. Table of contents

C. Executive Summary (Not more than 3 pages)

D. Program Description with proposed Key Personnel (Not more than 20 pages)

E. Monitoring and Evaluation Plan (Not more than 3 pages)

F. Overview of the Applicant and Past Performance (Not more than 3 pages)

B) “Arranged in the order of the evaluation criteria”

1) Program Description - 45 points

2) Past Performance – 25 points

3) Coordination - 15 points

4) Key Personnel – 15 points


Answer:
See Answer 2 above.
24. Attachment C, “desktop gap analysis” is noted on p. 21. However, a separate Attachment C does not appear with the RFA documents.  A table labeled “Support provided to GBV survivors as of 2009” appears at the end of Attachment A. Please clarify if this table is, or is not, Attachment C.  Also, please define acronyms used in this table.  If this table is not Attachment C, please provide Attachment C if it is the intent that the information in Attachment C be used in preparing the application. 
Answer. 
See Answer 11 above
25. Section A, p. 2 states: “The application should be prepared according to the structural format set forth below.” On pp. 3-4, the following format is given:
Technical Application Format
. Cover sheet (1-2 pages)
A. Table of contents
B. Executive summary (not more than 3 pages)
C. Program Description with proposed Key Personnel (Not more than 20 pages)
D. Monitoring and Evaluation Plan (Not more than 3 pages)
E. Overview of the Applicant and Past Performance (not more than 3 pages)
F. Attachments:
I.1   Overall Management Approach
I.2   Signed personnel statements
I.3   Resumes or CVs for proposed Key Personnel
I.4   Maps (if any)
I.5   Letter of support from host government
I.6   Past-performance references
I.7   Sub-agreements
I.8   Other attachments 
              On pp. 4-6, the following format headings indicated are different.
Please clarify which format should be followed. Specifically, are the Management Plan and Sub-Agreements to be included in the body of the application or as Attachments? If the former, what are the page limit guidelines?
Answer:
See Answer 2 above.
26. Though partners are part of an existing consortium, they focus on different geographical areas (Heal Africa in Masisi and Rutshuru/North Kivu, PPSSP in Beni/North Kivu and Ituri). Is it advisable to develop a joint proposal or separate proposals depending on geographical areas of interventions?

Answer:
That would be the decision of the applicant. 
 

27. Some partners like Heal Africa have a more integrated approach of SGBV with medical components, psychosocial counselling, social integration and legal support while others focus mainly on psychosocial counselling and social reintegration only, working with other organisations for medical and legal aspects. Would a proposal focussing on a few aspects of SGBV be competitive? 

Answer:
The Mission is looking for a program that would cover all aspects of SGBV care possibly through multiple partners under one award. 
28. The proposal mentions that Annex C will provide additional information on the geographic location of existing GBV projects.  Could you please provide us with that annex or information? We are particular interested in knowing where (in terms of health zones) IRC and COOPI are working. And is that assistance being provided across the entire health zone or only to selected parts of those health zones?

Answer:
See Answer to question 11 above
29. Is there an award floor? Also, do award recipients have to apply for grant renewals annually -- or will the expected period of performance run 3 to 5 years, possibly longer?

I understand from the printed information that USAID anticipates donating all available funds to ONE recipient. However, is there anyway the agency will consider grants of about $100,000/year for the duration of the funding projects?

Answer:
USAID will award to 1 recipient for the total amount for 3 years with a possible extension up to 5 years. The recipient does not renew on an annual basis. The one recipient may consist of a consortium that covers different areas of expertise. 
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